	Corporate Procurement

SOFT MARKET TESTING (SMT): Vending Machines Solution
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	RETURN OF SMT submissions 



	The closing date for the return of SMT submissions is:
	Monday 27th June 2022 10:00 Hrs

	http://www.the-chest.org.uk



	CONTACT AND QUERIES

Please raise any queries which may have a bearing on the SMT or any specific questions regarding this process with Wirral Council Corporate Procurement via The Chest at the earliest opportunity, and in any case not later than 12 noon, 3 working days prior to the closing date.  Questions raised after this time may not be responded to.
Interested parties are advised that where such enquiries have been made, and it is appropriate to do so, the Council will distribute a copy of the enquiry and the written reply, with anonymity preserved, via The Chest.  
PLEASE DO NOT CONTACT OFFICERS VIA ANY OTHER METHOD AS A RESPONSE WILL NOT BE PROVIDED.

Please indicate those parts of your submission that you regard as commercially sensitive in the event that information requests are received from third parties.



	USING THE CHEST

Supplier Guides on how to use The Chest can be found by clicking on the “Help” button at the top right hand side of the screen.

In the event of any TECHNICAL problems using The Chest, please contact:

Email: procontractsuppliers@proactis.com
Telephone: 0330 005 0352(08:30 - 17:30)
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	1 Information to Suppliers


1.1 This exercise is intended to assess the level of interest from potential suppliers; and to solicit innovative ideas that lead to the delivery of outcomes and to explore options which improve and enhance the Council’s customer, staff and partner interfaces to meet future business needs, realise its strategic objectives, and deliver improved process and performance for the benefit of all users and the wider organisation. By issuing notices and publishing this document the council is not committing to progressing further with a tender process. 

1.2 References to the form of agreement are for information and context only and may change.

1.3 Your responses will not be “formally evaluated’’ and scored, as this exercise is distinct to any future procurement process. Any indication of commercial terms will not be binding on you and will not be considered if the council proceeds further. 
1.4 The council accepts no responsibility for any associated financial costs, nor will it be liable for reimbursement of any costs related to this submission.  

1.5 The council is open to exploring innovative ways of structuring any prospective implementation that delivers key benefits and outcomes and any additional value including social value it may deliver Please do not feel constrained from making alternative proposals or suggesting different approaches that meet business requirements and support the delivery of key outcomes.

1.6 The scope of this SMT Questionnaire is for the Council to gain an understanding of what potential solutions are available to inform its development plan and any related procurement exercise to maximise the value realised by the Council – additional, innovative ideas or solutions would be welcome in addition to a compliant response.

	2 Background to the Project


2.1
Introduction
Wirral Council is currently reviewing its Vending Service offering across the Authority as part of its Strategic Recovery Plan. Therefore, Wirral would like to understand the Markets interest and Plausible innovative or added value that could be offered as part of any resulting contract agreement. Therefore, Wirral is seeking views from potential providers on how best to deliver a Vending Solution across its Leisure Services, and possibly beyond.
Any resulting contract would be to primarily deliver goods or services to council establishments in Wirral.   Wirral is a Metropolitan Borough of Merseyside in the Northwest of England with a population of approx 300,000 over 60 square miles.  Further information about Wirral is available on our website (www.wirral.gov.uk).
The initial Contract would be to provide the proposed goods and services to Wirral Councils Leisure Services, (leisure centres and municipal golf) with the view if successful then further venues would be added to the proposal such as Theatres, Colleges, Museums, and any other Wirral Asset thought to be a suitable location. 

The aim of this Soft Market Testing Exercise (the “SMT”) is to; 

· understand the optimum way of delivering a Vending Service across the Council; 

· for the Council to gain a better understanding of how the provider market operates in relation to innovation, value for money, cost reduction, revenue generation, service levels, management information, etc;

· to assist the Council in developing appropriate procurement documentation; and see whether the market has experience of being involved in delivering similar projects.

If you feel that your organisation can contribute to this SMT please complete the questionnaire and return, by Monday 27th June 2022 10:00 Hrs
Please note that this is not a call for competition, or neither is it a procurement exercise. 

For the avoidance of doubt, this SMT is for the purpose of conducting a soft market testing exercise and will not formally begin the procurement or constitute any commitment by the Council to undertake any procurement exercise.

2.2
Current Arrangements
Wirral Council’s Leisure Services are responsible for the management of 6 Leisure Centres and 2 golf courses across the Borough, providing a range of sports and leisure facilities to the residents. At present there is no vending facilities at any of these locations.

Previous arrangements expired during the Covid pandemic, and no interim provisions have been sourced due to the uncertainty surround the economic recovery and return to the “New Normal”.

Innovative and creative ideas are invited for discussion regarding promoting the service and increasing income.

 2.3 Scope
Prior to COVID there were in the region of 3,000,000 visitors annually to the leisure facilities and there were over 14,500 members paying monthly. Significant investment has seen the redevelopment of facilities at West Kirby, The Oval, Leasowe and Guinea Gap with further capital bids in the pipeline.

Any resulting contract would require suppliers to be available to cover a 7 day per week operation (excluding bank holidays)
Key Leisure sites have been identified due to the size of the venue and expected footfall
· West Kirby Concourse

· Europa Pool

· Bebington Oval

Other Leisure Sites

· Leasowe

· Guinea Gap

· Bidston Tennis Centre
· Arrowe Park Golf Course
· The Warren Golf Course
	Number
	Facility Name
	Facility Address

	1
	West Kirby Concourse
	Grange Road

West Kirby

Wirral 

CH48 4HX

	2
	Europa Pool
	Conway Street

Birkenhead

Wirral

CH41 6RN

	3
	Bebington Oval
	Old Chester Road

Bebington

Wirral

CH63 7LF

	4
	Leasowe
	Twickenham Drive

Leasowe

Wirral

CH46 1PF

	5
	Guinea Gap
	Riverview Road

Wallasey
Wirral

CH4 6PX

	6
	Bidston Tennis Centre
	Valley Road

Birkenhead

Wirral

CH41 7EJ

	7
	Arrowe Park golf course
	174 Arrowe Park Road, 

Birkenhead,

Wirral,

CH49 5PF

	8
	The Warren golf course
	Grove Road,

Wallasey,

CH45 0JA


Outside of Scope

Cafés are located at the following sites / Venues

· West Kirby

· Europa Pools

· Arrowe Park Golf

The Authority operates in-house cafés within West Kirby & Europa Pools sites. There is also a café operated by a lease holder at Arrowe Park golf course.

The cafes are not considered within this scope; however, consideration should be given to a complimentary offer.

Wirral are looking for suppliers to suggest a variety of options that would meet the needs of Leisure Services users and maximise revenue potential for the Council.

	3 Project Aims


3.1
Project Aims
To maintain attractive leisure facilities for Wirral residents, Leisure Service members and the wider community Wirral Council are looking to secure a Corporate Vending Solution that provides a mix of products and services, considering the necessity to provide Healthy & Sugar Free vended options.

To make an assessment on the best commercial outcome for the Council

It is envisaged that this Soft Market Testing questionnaire will determine the market appetite and ability to work alongside the Council in delivering this project.

Potential suppliers must be able to aid Wirral Council in the following key outcomes

· Provision of a reliable suite of Vending Machines at zero cost to the Council

· Increase Income / Profit Generation

· Energy Efficient Machines (particularly in light of recent utility cost increases)

· Provide a variety of Vending Solutions
· Provide a varied mix of products that include Healthy & Fair-Trade Options
· Contactless / Alternative payment facilities
· Responsive service in relation to Machine Call Out / Breakdown

· Efficient Reporting – The Provision of Management Information, including % Profit Share, Sales by Site, Proposed product changes, Call out response times, uptake re Healthy/sugar free items.
	4 Procurement Structure


4.1 Whilst the service requirements stated within this document are an early indication of what the services are looking to procure, the structure of this procurement may be subject to change and will be finalised following this consultation with the market.
	5 Soft Market Testing – Questionnaire


Wirral Council would like to hear about your company including any views, suggestions and proposals as part of this Soft Market Testing exercise.
Interested parties should respond to the questions below, answers should be contained within the text space provided.
All submissions will be treated confidentially. 

	1


	Please provide an overview of the services you currently provide to the Leisure Market, drawing attention to any offering that may add value, offer innovation, or increase revenue?
Please include how you meet the challenges of a 7-day operational service, (excluding bank holidays)
Please provide specific detail of what options are available to the Leisure Market. 

	
	
	

	2
	If your proposal has already been implemented elsewhere, please provide a case study if possible, highlighting how the implementation met our requirements. 
Including any success stories in terms of increased turnover or profit share increase for the contracting organisation.



	
	
	

	3
	Do you provide leisure specific products such as Protein snacks/drinks? 
If so, is this seen as a growing market?

Please provide your view on healthy alternatives, are healthy options part of your existing provisions

How does sugar tax affect product selection?

What, if anything are you doing to combat the issues above?



	
	
	

	4
	Do you currently offer Servicing / Repairs and Maintenance as part of your offer?

If so, can you please provide your standard call out times and emergency call out response times.

Is this service offered on a 7 day per week operation (excluding bank holidays)


	
	
	

	5
	Management information would be a key element within any future contract. Please provide examples of the current reporting functions you provide. These

	
	
	

	6
	Are there any additional services you would like to see included that we have not considered?

	
	
	

	7
	Would the proposed contract length influence your decision to submit a tender response? Is so what length of contract would be attractive to the market?

	
	
	

	8
	Are there any potential risks relevant to this project? If so, how could they be mitigated?

	
	
	

	9
	How long would your recommended proposal take to implement. From contract award to machine installation?


	

	
	
	

	10
	A Site visit may be offered as part of any upcoming tender process. Would this be useful for suppliers in terms or making a judgement regarding the number of machines likely to be needed per site, along with positioning and Machine Housing / Branding.
*Please indicate Yes if you would like to have the opportunity to visits the Leisure sites*

	
	Yes 
	No

	11
	Are you happy for Wirral to contact you directly in relation to this Soft Market Testing Exercise for additional information?

	
	Yes
	No

	12

	Please confirm if you are interested in bidding for this future Opportunity and would like to be included in any future communications about the progress of this project

	
	Yes
	No

	13
	Please provide any further comments here
	

	
	
	


Funding Structure

Should the Council decide to continue with this project, it will be necessary to understand the associated costings for alternative models.

Please complete the table below with the funding allocation for the vending machines you have outlined in your recommendation, to ensure accurate budgetary provision can be made.

	Lease/Purchase Option
	Machine Type
	Single Machine Cost £
	% Discount if applicable for multiple units

	Outright Purchase
	Free Standing Dual Vend
	£
	

	Outright Purchase
	Free Standing Bottle
	£
	

	Outright Purchase
	Free Standing Hot Drink
	£
	

	Lease – Fully Managed Service
	Free Standing Dual Vend
	£
	

	Lease – Fully Managed Service
	Free Standing Bottle
	£
	

	Lease – Fully Managed Service
	Free Standing Hot Drink
	£
	

	Lease – Self Fill Basis
	Free Standing Dual Vend
	£
	

	Lease – Self Fill Basis
	Free Standing Bottle
	£
	

	Lease – Self Fill Basis
	Free Standing Hot Drink
	£
	

	Contactless Payment Facility
	-
	£
	


Please note that suppliers will not be held to funding allocations provided. This will only be used as a guide to assess any subsequent contract values.
Please note that this is not a call for competition, or neither is it a procurement exercise. 

Suppliers will not be prejudiced in any future procurement process by either responding or not responding to this soft market testing exercise.

For the avoidance of doubt, this SMT is for the purpose of conducting a soft market testing exercise and will not formally begin the procurement or constitute any commitment by the Council to undertake any procurement exercise.

	 6 Contact details


	COMPANY NAME
	

	COMPANY REGISTERED ADDRESS (including postcode)
	

	CONTACT NAME
	

	POSITION
	

	TELEPHONE
	

	EMAIL
	


PLEASE NOTE: 

Any responses to this Soft Market Testing imply no commitment on Providers to engage in any subsequent procurement process, nor do they confer any advantaged status or guarantee of inclusion in any subsequent procurement process for those Providers who do respond. The questionnaire and all responses received are in no way legally binding on any party.

Wirral Council reserve the right to withdraw this notice at any time. Wirral Council are not bound to accept any proposals submitted by Providers and will not be liable for any costs incurred as a result of Providers engaging with this process. This Soft Market Testing Exercise does not guarantee that procurement will take place and Wirral Council reserves the right to defer from any procurement entirely.

THE DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSIONS IS 27th June 2022 10:00 Hrs 
